
   

 
 

99 West Main Street    ●    P.O. Box 188    ●    New Albany, Ohio 43054    ●    614.939.2254    ●    Fax 939.2234    ●    newalbanyohio.org 

 
 

New Albany Board of Zoning Appeals Agenda 

August 22, 2022  7:00pm 

Members of the public must attend the meeting in-person to participate and provide comment at New 

Albany Village Hall at 99 West Main Street. The meeting will be streamed for viewing purposes only via 

the city website at https://newalbanyohio.org/answers/streaming-meetings/ 

 
I. Call To Order 

 

II. Roll Call 

 

III. Action of Minutes:  July 25, 2022  

   

IV. Additions or Corrections to Agenda 

Swear in all witnesses/applicants/staff whom plan to speak regarding an application on tonight’s 

agenda.  “Do you swear to tell the truth and nothing but the truth”. 

 

V.  Hearing of Visitors for Items Not on Tonight's Agenda 

 

VII. Cases:  

 

VAR-88-2022 Variance  

Variance to the pool fencing requirements of Codified Ordinance section 1173.02(e) 8323 Central 

College Road (PID: 222-002157).  

Applicant: John and Suah Hwang 

 

Motion of Acceptance of staff reports and related documents into the record for - 

VAR-88-2022. 

 

Motion of approval for application VAR-88-2022 based on the findings in the staff report with the 

conditions listed in the staff report, subject to staff approval.  

 

 

VAR-89-2022 Variance  

Variance to allow for the use of metal material for a pergola (recreational amenity) as required 

per code 22 New Albany Farms Road (PID: 222-000986).  

Applicant: Kevin Reiner Design, c/o Kris Cody 

 

Motion of Acceptance of staff reports and related documents into the record for - 

VAR-89-2022. 

 

Motion of approval for application VAR-89-2022 based on the findings in the staff report with the 

conditions listed in the staff report, subject to staff approval.  

 

 

VIII. Other Business 

 

https://newalbanyohio.org/answers/streaming-meetings/


   

 
 

99 West Main Street    ●    P.O. Box 188    ●    New Albany, Ohio 43054    ●    614.939.2254    ●    Fax 939.2234    ●    newalbanyohio.org 

IX. Poll members for comment 

 

X. Adjournment 



 

22 0725 DRAFT BZA Minutes  Page 1 of 10 

New Albany Board of Zoning Appeals 

July 25, 2022 DRAFT Minutes 

 

New Albany Board of Zoning Appeals met in the Council Chamber of Village Hall, 99 W. Main Street 

and was called to order by Board of Zoning Appeals Vice Chair, Mr. Smith, at 7:00 p.m. 

 

Those answering roll call: 

 Mr. Shaun LaJeunesse     Absent 

  Mr. Kirk Smith      Present 

 Ms. Tiana Samuels     Absent 

 Mr. Abe Jacob      Present 

 Mr. Hans Schell      Present 

Ms. Andrea Wiltrout (Council Rep)   Present 

 

Staff members present: Steven Mayer, Development Services Coordinator; Chris Christian, Planner; 

Chelsea Nichols, Planner; Josie Taylor, Clerk. 

 

Ms. Taylor noted that the April 25, 2022 had been updated prior to the meeting to remove Mr. 

Gallagher's name from the top and replace it with Mr. LaJeunesse as the member who called the April 

25, 2022 meeting to order.  

 

Moved by Mr. Jacob to approve the April 25, 2022 meeting minutes as amended by Ms. Taylor's 

comments, seconded by Mr. Smith. Upon roll call: Mr. Jacob, yea; Mr. Smith, yea; Mr. Schell, yea. 

Yea, 3; Nay, 0; Abstain, 0. Motion carried by a 3-0 vote. 

 

Mr. Smith asked if anyone wanted to discuss items not on tonight's Agenda. (No response). 

 

Mr. Smith swore all who would be speaking before the Board of Zoning Appeals (hereafter, "BZA") to 

tell the truth and nothing but the truth. 

 

VAR-74-2022 Variances 

Variance to allow a playground to be located within a platted buffer area at 7365 Milton Court 

(PID: 222-002043).  

Applicant: Aman and Michelle Singh 

 

Mr. Christian presented the staff report. 

 

Mr. Albrecht discussed the implications of the Americans with Disabilities Act (hereafter, 

"ADA") and Fair Housing Act (hereafter, "FHA") on this variance request. 

 

Mr. Smith asked if staff wanted to include an email provided by a neighbor into the report. 

 

Mr. Christian stated yes and noted that a neighbor of the applicants', Mr. Frank Sudol, had 

emailed a letter to the City which had been distributed to BZA members and should be part of 

the record. 

 

Mr. Smith asked if the applicant would be speaking about this application. 

 

Ms. Singh stated she and her husband had been working to restore the area they had previously 

touched and would not be doing so again. 

 

Mr. Schell asked if they would not be placing a fence in the area at this time. 



 

22 0725 DRAFT BZA Minutes  Page 2 of 10 

 

Mrs. Singh stated right. 

 

Mr. Schell asked what the reason was for this. 

 

Mrs. Singh stated they had previously planned to build a pool but that plan was now on hold. 

 

Mr. Schell asked if the fence had then been for the pool. 

 

Mrs. Singh stated yes, there was no need for the fence now. 

 

Mr. Smith asked if they moved the playground to where the pool had been planned to be, would 

that resolve this issue. 

 

Mr. Christian stated yes, if the playground were moved out of the buffer zone a variance would 

no longer be needed. 

 

Mrs. Singh stated yes, the playground was partly into the buffer zone and had been installed 

with the permission of the home owners' association (hereafter, "HOA"). Mrs. Singh added that 

they could see their children while they were playing on the playground but the playground was 

not visible to neighbors or those on the street. 

 

Mr. Smith asked if it was anchored down. 

 

Mrs. Singh stated it had not been cemented in, but it would not be easy to move. Mrs. Singh 

provided photos of the playground to the BZA members and noted that she and her husband 

had worked with Mr. Sudol, who had emailed the City, on the installation of the landscaping to 

block his view of the playground at the time it had been installed. 

 

Mr. Schell asked if the photos, with the foliage, were current. 

 

Mrs. Singh stated yes. 

 

Mr. Schell asked about the coverage the landscaping provided in the winter. 

 

Mrs. Singh stated it was thinner, but still thick enough and there were mostly evergreens in the 

area. 

 

Ms. Wiltrout pointed to an area on the presentation and asked what it was. 

 

Mrs. Singh stated there were trees planted in the area and she believed they might be part of the 

remediation plan. 

 

Mr. Christian stated that area reflected the approved remediation plan. 

 

Mrs. Singh mentioned the types of trees and other foliage in the buffer zone. 

 

Ms. Wiltrout asked if the the area in yellow was the buffer zone.  

 

Mr. Christian stated yes. 

 



 

22 0725 DRAFT BZA Minutes  Page 3 of 10 

Ms. Wiltrout stated that avoiding a precedent would be possible if this were a unique lot and 

asked if the playground was necessary and why it needed to be where it was. 

 

Mrs. Singh stated that other areas on the property would be open to other neighbors. 

 

Ms. Wiltrout asked if they were on their patio would they also be able to see them playing. 

 

Mrs. Singh stated yes, if they were outside. 

 

Ms. Wiltrout asked how could they see their son better from the current location where the 

playground was located. 

 

Mrs. Singh used the pointer to indicate the areas of her home on the presentation. Mrs. Singh 

stated that currently the playground location was viewable from the kitchen and living area of 

her home and trees and shrubs would block the view if the playground were placed in other 

locations. 

 

Ms. Wiltrout asked if there were additional reasons, other than landscaping, why the 

playground could not be located in another part of the property. 

 

Mr. Singh stated the current view of the playground was the easiest possible due to the way the 

house was laid out. 

 

Ms. Wiltrout asked if other views were obstructed by shrubs and trees. 

 

Mrs. Singh stated shrubs, trees, and the house itself and its layout. 

 

Mr. Schell asked if the pool shown on the presentation was no longer being planned. 

 

Mrs. Singh stated they were not currently planning one. Mrs. Singh mentioned their prior 

request had been for a fence around the perimeter of the yard. 

 

Mr. Smith reviewed the two (2) conditions in the staff report for this application and asked if 

the applicant was okay with them. 

 

Mrs. Singh stated she had no problems with those conditions and would follow them.  

 

Mr. Smith asked how many feet there were from the playground to where the pool would be 

and why the playground could not be moved to that area. 

 

Mrs. Singh stated it would be a lot of effort to move the playground. Mrs. Singh stated it was 

about seven (7) feet into the buffer zone, perhaps, but it would need to be disassembled to be 

moved. Mrs. Singh stated they had planted about $14,000 of trees to block Mr. Sudol's view 

and he had said he was fine with the view, but did not want a precedent established. 

 

Mr. Smith asked if others had any questions or comments. (No response). 

 

Mr. Smith noted that Mr. Sudol's email had asked that several conditions be added if this 

variance were approved. Mr. Smith asked Mrs. Singh if she had seen the email and the 

conditions requested. 

 

Mrs. Singh stated yes. 



 

22 0725 DRAFT BZA Minutes  Page 4 of 10 

 

Mr. Smith stated there were six (6) conditions. 

 

Mrs. Singh stated she believed the conditions were in line with the remediation already being 

worked on. 

 

Mr. Smith stated okay. 

 

Mr. Jacob stated he appreciated the work done by the applicants in working with the City and 

their neighbor and the good faith shown. Mr. Jacob stated the fifth condition in Mr. Sudol's 

email stood out to him, that of returning the area to its pre-development state upon removal of 

the playground. Mr. Jacob asked who would be responsible for doing that, the next owner or 

the applicant. 

 

Mrs. Singh stated they would commit to removing it and would let those moving in know the 

playground did not come with the house.  

 

Mr. Jacob stated thank you. 

 

Ms. Wiltrout asked if that condition could be enforced, would it be added to the deed or would 

it be caveat emptor. 

 

Mr. Albrecht stated it could be put in the deed. 

 

Mr. Schell asked the applicant if they had obtained an estimate on what it would cost to move 

the playground. 

 

Mrs. Singh said no. 

 

Mr. Schell asked if the playground were moved just fifteen (15) feet would that impact her son. 

 

Mrs. Singh stated he would get used to it eventually, but it would be an issue due to 

expectations and the need for consistency. 

 

Mr. Schell asked if that would be one of the issues with moving the playground. 

 

Mrs. Singh stated it was more due to safety issues as her son had an issue with taking off and it 

could be dangerous if they were not able to watch and supervise. Mrs. Singh noted her son still 

had elopement events. 

 

Mr. Schell asked if the placement was then more important than the cost of tearing it down. 

 

Mrs. Singh stated yes and while they could get estimates, this was in a good place where they 

were able to sit and watch the playground. 

 

Mr. Smith asked if the applicant had mentioned she also had a two (2) year old. 

 

Mrs. Singh stated yes. 

 

Mr. Smith stated that the playground could then be in use for twelve (12) or fourteen (14) years 

until the youngest child aged out.  

 



 

22 0725 DRAFT BZA Minutes  Page 5 of 10 

Mrs. Singh stated yes, but in terms of Mr. Sudol 's view, the trees would also be getting bigger. 

 

Mr. Jacob stated that in discussing the application he agreed with the staff's conditions but was 

also inclined to agree with Mr. Sudol 's fourth and fifth conditions from the email, those about 

no expansion to the playground and that if there were new owners the area should be returned 

to its natural state. 

 

Mr. Schell asked the applicant about these conditions. 

 

Mrs. Singh stated they would not expand it in any way and would commit to taking it down if 

they left. 

 

Mr. Smith stated Mr. Sudol 's third condition indicated that if the variance was due to an ADA 

accommodation then the playground would be removed once the child was no longer a full time 

resident. Mr. Smith stated that as there was a younger child who should also be allowed to 

enjoy the playground he did not support that. Mr. Smith stated he was in support of Mr. Sudol's 

fourth and fifth conditions. Mr. Smith noted there was also a condition about no use of 

fertilizer, weed killers, or pesticides in the area as well as one saying mowing would not occur, 

which he did not understand why mowing would not be wanted. 

 

Ms. Wiltrout stated she believed that would be in the natural buffer zone area. 

 

Mrs. Singh stated the area had once had debris and poison ivy and they had cleared it out, but 

they were now remediating that area and had added natural grass and believed that was what 

Mr. Sudol was referring to and stated they would not. 

 

Mr. Smith stated okay. 

 

Moved by Mr. Smith to accept the staff report for VAR-74-2022 into the record including the email 

from Mr. Sudol, seconded by Mr. Jacob. Upon roll call vote: Mr. Smith, yea; Mr. Jacob, yea; Mr. 

Schell, yea. Yea, 3; Nay, 0; Abstain, 0. Motion carried by a 3-0 vote. 

 

Moved by Mr. Jacob to approve variance VAR-74-2022 with the following: 

1) All other areas within the buffer zone must remain undisturbed and allowed to grow over time to 

reestablish the zone as it has existed historically; 

2) The playground equipment must be removed if the current property owners or their family members 

no longer reside at the property and the removal shall occur prior to the current property owners or their 

family members no longer residing at the property; 

3) The variance is only for the current playground on the property and no additional equipment would 

be permitted; 

seconded by Mr. Smith. Upon roll call vote: Mr. Jacob, yea; Mr. Smith, yea; Mr. Schell, yea. Yea, 3; 

Nay, 0; Abstain, 0. Motion carried by a 3-0 vote. 

 

Other Business 

 

Mr. Mayer introduced Ms. Chelsea Nichols as a new Planner for the City and noted she would also be 

helping out with the Boards and Commissions.  

 

Mr. Smith welcomed Ms. Nichols. 

 

Poll Members for Comment: 

 



 

22 0725 DRAFT BZA Minutes  Page 6 of 10 

None. 

 

Moved by Mr. Smith to adjourn the meeting, seconded by Mr. Jacob. Upon roll call vote: Mr. Smith, 

yea; Mr. Jacob, yea; Mr. Schell, yea. Yea, 3; Nay, 0; Abstain, 0. Motion carried by a 3-0 vote. 

 

Meeting adjourned at 7:23 p.m.  

 

Submitted by Josie Taylor.  



 

22 0725 DRAFT BZA Minutes  Page 7 of 10 

APPENDIX  

 

 

 

 
 

Board of Zoning Appeals Staff Report 

July 25, 2022 Meeting 

 

 

7365 MILTON COURT 

BUFFER ZONE VARIANCE 

 

 

LOCATION:  7365 Milton Court (PID: 222-002043).  

APPLICANT:   Aman & Michelle Singh 

REQUEST: (A) Variance to allow a playground to be located within a platted buffer area.  
ZONING:   R-2 

STRATEGIC PLAN:  Residential  

APPLICATION: VAR-74-2022 

 

Review based on: Application materials received on June 20, 2022.   

Staff report prepared by Chris Christian, Planner II. 

 

I. REQUEST AND BACKGROUND  

The applicant requests a variance to allow an existing playground to remain located within a platted 

buffer zone where no work is permitted to occur that would alter the natural state of the area.  

 

On December 20, 2021, the Board of Zoning Appeals denied the same variance request to allow the 

same playground and a fence to be located in the platted buffer area. During the meeting, the property 

owner removed the request to have the playground remain in the buffer zone and asked the board to 

only consider the fence location as part of the variance request. In their denial for the fence, the BZA 

stated that approving the variance request would not preserve the spirit and intent of the buffer zone 

requirement which was put in place at the time of rezoning. The board agreed that the property could 

still be enjoyed without granting the variance request and did not note of any special conditions or 

circumstances that would justify granting the request.  

 

The applicant has provided new information as justification for granting the variance request to allow 

the existing playground to remain in the buffer zone. This new information is underlined and included 

in the evaluation section of the staff report along with the original considerations from the staff report 

issued for the December 20, 2021, Board of Zoning Appeals meeting.  

 

II. SITE DESCRIPTION & USE 

The .52-acre property is located within section 15 of the New Albany Country Club community, 

contains a single-family residential home and is surrounded by residentially zoned and used properties.  

 

In response to a code complaint, staff investigated and found that the buffer zone on the property had 

been altered It appears that trees and undergrowth were removed and replaced with turf grass. The city 

zoning officer and forester have approved a restoration plan with the property owner to restore the trees 

and undergrowth for the area that was altered by the current property owner. 

 



 

22 0725 DRAFT BZA Minutes  Page 8 of 10 

III. ASSESSMENT 

The application complies with application submittal requirements in C.O. 1113.03, and is considered 

complete. The property owners within 200 feet of the property in question have been notified. 

 

Criteria 

The standard for granting of an area variance is set forth in the case of Duncan v. Village of 

Middlefield, 23 Ohio St.3d 83 (1986). The Board must examine the following factors when deciding 

whether to grant a landowner an area variance: 

 

All of the factors should be considered and no single factor is dispositive.  The key to whether an area 

variance should be granted to a property owner under the “practical difficulties” standard is whether the 

area zoning requirement, as applied to the property owner in question, is reasonable and practical. 

 

1. Whether the property will yield a reasonable return or whether there can be a beneficial use of 

the property without the variance. 

2. Whether the variance is substantial. 

3. Whether the essential character of the neighborhood would be substantially altered or 

adjoining properties suffer a “substantial detriment.” 

4. Whether the variance would adversely affect the delivery of government services. 

5. Whether the property owner purchased the property with knowledge of the zoning restriction. 

6. Whether the problem can be solved by some manner other than the granting of a variance. 

7. Whether the variance preserves the “spirit and intent” of the zoning requirement and whether 

“substantial justice” would be done by granting the variance. 

 

Plus, the following criteria as established in the zoning code (Section 1113.06):  

 

8. That special conditions and circumstances exist which are peculiar to the land or structure 

involved and which are not applicable to other lands or structures in the same zoning district. 

9. That a literal interpretation of the provisions of the Zoning Ordinance would deprive the 

applicant of rights commonly enjoyed by other properties in the same zoning district under the 

terms of the Zoning Ordinance. 

10. That the special conditions and circumstances do not result from the action of the applicant.  

11. That granting the variance requested will not confer on the applicant any special privilege that 

is denied by the Zoning Ordinance to other lands or structures in the same zoning district. 

12. That granting the variance will not adversely affect the health and safety of persons residing or 

working in the vicinity of the proposed development, be materially detrimental to the public 

welfare, or injurious to private property or public improvements in the vicinity. 

III. EVALUATION 

(A) Variance to allow a playground to be located within a platted buffer area.  

The following should be considered in the Board’s decision: 

1. The applicant proposes to allow an existing playground to remain in the same buffer area.  

2. There is a platted buffer area that extends 30 feet into the property beginning at the rear lot line. 

The playground sits approximately 13+/- feet from the rear property line.  

3. The plat states that no structure or building shall be located in a buffer zone nor shall any work 

be performed within the buffer zone that would alter the natural state of the zone. The plat does 

allow for maintenance within easements located within the buffer zone and the removal of dead 

and diseased trees and/or vegetation.  

4. The applicant has provided new information as part of the justification for the variance request 

which was not included in the original application in late 2021. The applicant states that their 

10-year-old son has an Autism Spectrum Disorder and Expressive Speech Delay diagnoses, has 

a tendency for elopement and is unable to respond to questions when asked. The applicant 



 

22 0725 DRAFT BZA Minutes  Page 9 of 10 

states that allowing the playground to remain in its current location allows them to monitor 

their son at all times, ensure his safety and ensure that he has not eloped (left the yard without 

permission.  

5. The city law director reviewed this new information and provides the following comments. As 

a general principle, the American Disabilities Act (ADA) requires a public entity to make 

reasonable modifications in its policies, practices and procedures when necessary to avoid 

discrimination on the basis of a disability. A modification is not necessary when it would 

fundamentally alter the nature of the service, program or activity. For this reason, the ADA 

requirements are a consideration for this variance request.  

6. Additionally, the city law director states that the Fair Housing Act (FHA) prohibits 

discrimination of services or facilities in connection with a dwelling. Per the FHA, 

discrimination includes refusal to make reasonable accommodation in rules, polices, practices, 

or services when such accommodations may be necessary to afford a person equal opportunity 

to enjoy a dwelling. Based on these requirements, a variance may be necessary to allow an 

individual with a disability the opportunity to enjoy their dwelling.  

7. Based on this new information and the city law director opinion, staff is supportive of the 

variance request for this property with a condition of approval that the playground equipment 

must be removed if the current property owners or their family members no longer reside at the 

property.  

 

Original considerations from the staff report issued December 20, 2021: 

8. There are special conditions and circumstances of this property that justify the variance request. 

The property is located on a cul-de-sac so the width of the front of the lot is smaller than a lot 

that is not located on a cul-de-sac. The width of the front of the property is 160+/- feet and 

widens to approximately 390 feet at the rear. Cul-de-sac lots are typically wider at the rear of 

the property to account for the bend in the road. This shape necessitates the home be built 

further from the street yard in order to provide adequate space to construct a home while 

meeting other setback requirements. This constraint, in addition to the 30-foot buffer zone in 

the rear yard creates unique conditions and circumstances with smaller rear yards that limit 

where playgrounds are able to be located on this property. Homes that are located on 

rectangular shaped lots, do not have these same design challenges which allows for the home to 

be located closer to the street, thereby creating larger rear yards for recreational amenities that 

can meet the setback requirement. 

9. It does not appear that the spirit and intent of the requirement will be met if the variance is 

approved. The intent of the buffer is to allow that area to remain in its natural state and be 

undisturbed. While not required by city code, this buffer zone provides screening for adjacent 

properties in the vicinity and preserves existing natural features of the site. While the applicant 

is encroaching into this buffer zone, they are remediating landscaping that was previously 

removed to reestablish the screening for adjacent property owners.  

10. Approving the variance request may be substantial. While the playground are minimally 

invasive improvements, locating them in this buffer zone will alter the natural state of the area.  

11. It does appear that the issue can be solved in another manner other than granting the variance 

request. It appears that there is sufficient space on the site for the playground to be located 

outside of the buffer area in the backyard. For these reasons, it appears that there can also be a 

beneficial use of the property without the variance.  

12. Granting the variance will not adversely affect the health and safety of persons residing or 

working in the vicinity of the proposed development, be materially detrimental to the public 

welfare, or injurious to private property or public improvements in the vicinity. 

13. Granting the variance will not adversely affect the delivery of government services.  

 

IV. RECOMMENDATION 



 

22 0725 DRAFT BZA Minutes  Page 10 of 10 

The city staff is supportive of the variance request based on the new information submitted by the 

applicant and the opinion of the law director.  

 

If the variance request is approved, staff recommends a two condition of approvals:  

1. All other areas within the buffer zone be undisturbed and allowed to grow and reestablish the 

zone as it has existed historically.  

2. The playground equipment must be removed if the current property owners or their family 

members no longer reside at the property.  

 

V. ACTION 

Should the Board of Zoning Appeals find that the application has sufficient basis for approval, the 

following motion would be appropriate (conditions may be added):  

 

Move to approve application VAR-74-2022 (conditions of approval may be added). 

1. All other areas within the buffer zone must remain undisturbed and allowed to grow overtime 

to reestablish the zone as it has existed historically.  

2. The playground equipment must be removed if the current property owners or their family 

members no longer reside at the property.  

 

 

Approximate Site Location:  

 
Source: Google Earth 

 

 



22 0822 8323 Central College Road Pool Fence Variance VAR-88-2022  1 of 7 

 

    
 
 

 

Board of Zoning Appeals Staff Report 

August 22, 2022 Meeting 
 

 

8323 CENTRAL COLLEGE ROAD 

POOL FENCE VARIANCE 

 

 

LOCATION:  8323 Central College Road (PID: 222-002157) 

APPLICANT:   John and Suah Hwang 

REQUEST: Variance to Codified Ordinance Chapter 1173.02(e) to the fencing 

requirements for a private swimming pool 

STRATEGIC PLAN: Employment Center 

ZONING:   Agricultural District (AG) 

APPLICATION: VAR-88-2022  

 

Review based on: Application materials received on July 24, 2022 and August 1, 2022  

Staff report prepared by Chelsea Nichols, Planner 

 

I. REQUEST AND BACKGROUND  

The applicant requests a variance from C.O. Section 1173.02(e) for the requirement that any 

private swimming pool, or the property on which the pool is located, shall be enclosed by a wall 

or fence constructed so as to prevent uncontrolled access. Such wall or fence shall be of such 

design and construction as to effectively prevent a child from crawling or otherwise passing 

through or under such fence or barrier. Such wall or fence shall not be less than forty-eight (48) 

inches in height, maintained in good condition by the property owner, and affixed with an 

operable gate and lock. 

 

The city law director has previously advised that the Planning Commission (PC) must evaluate 

this application exclusively based upon the provisions and criteria generally set forth in the City 

Zoning Code as relates to variances (Chapter 1113), and the specific provisions contained within 

Section 1173.02(e) regarding private swimming pool fences. This same direction would be 

applied to the Board of Zoning Appeals (BZA) review.  

 

II. SITE DESCRIPTION & USE  

The site is 6.5 acres with a single-family home. The property is located on the south side of 

Central College Road; east of the Evans Road and Central College intersection, and west of the 

county line where Central College Road curves into Jug Street. The property is located six lots 

west of the Franklin County/Licking County line. The property is surrounded by Agriculturally 

zoned properties that are or could be used for residential land uses. The large neighboring 

property directly to the north is the undeveloped site owned by the Homewood Corporation. 

The neighboring properties directly to the south and west are developed large, single-family 

residential lots. The neighboring property directly to the east is an undeveloped lot that permits 

single-family residential.  

 

III. ASSESSMENT 

The application complies with application submittal requirements in C.O. 1113.03, and is 

considered complete. The pproperty owners within 200 feet of the property in question have been 

notified.  



22 0822 8323 Central College Road Pool Fence Variance VAR-88-2022  2 of 7 

 

 

 

Criteria 

The standards for granting of a variance is set forth in the case of Duncan v. Village of 

Middlefield, 23 Ohio St.3d 83 (1986). The Board must examine the following factors when 

deciding whether to grant a landowner a variance: 

 

All of the factors should be considered and no single factor is dispositive. The key to whether a 

variance should be granted to a property owner under the “practical difficulties” standard is 

whether the area zoning requirement, as applied to the property owner in question, is reasonable 

and practical. 

 

1. Whether the property will yield a reasonable return or whether there can be a beneficial 

use of the property without the variance. 

2. Whether the variance is substantial. 

3. Whether the essential character of the neighborhood would be substantially altered or 

adjoining properties suffer a “substantial detriment.” 

4. Whether the variance would adversely affect the delivery of government services. 

5. Whether the property owner purchased the property with knowledge of the zoning 

restriction. 

6. Whether the problem can be solved by some manner other than the granting of a 

variance. 

7. Whether the variance preserves the “spirit and intent” of the zoning requirement and 

whether “substantial justice” would be done by granting the variance. 

 

Plus, the following criteria as established in the zoning code (Section 1113.06):  

 

8. That special conditions and circumstances exist which are peculiar to the land or 

structure involved and which are not applicable to other lands or structures in the same 

zoning district. 

9. That a literal interpretation of the provisions of the Zoning Ordinance would deprive the 

applicant of rights commonly enjoyed by other properties in the same zoning district 

under the terms of the Zoning Ordinance. 

10. That the special conditions and circumstances do not result from the action of the 

applicant.  

11. That granting the variance requested will not confer on the applicant any special 

privilege that is denied by the Zoning Ordinance to other lands or structures in the same 

zoning district. 

12. That granting the variance will not adversely affect the health and safety of persons 

residing or working in the vicinity of the proposed development, be materially 

detrimental to the public welfare, or injurious to private property or public improvements 

in the vicinity. 

 

IV. FACTS 

Considerations and Basis for Decision 

 

The following information, in addition to application submittal information, meeting 

presentations and discussions should be considered in the Board of Zoning Appeals decision 

for the requested variance: 

1. Codified Ordinance Section 1173.02(e) requires that any private swimming pool, or the 

property on which the pool is located, shall be enclosed by a wall or fence constructed so 

as to prevent uncontrolled access. Such wall or fence shall be of such design and 

construction as to effectively prevent a child from crawling or otherwise passing through 

or under such fence or barrier. Such wall or fence shall not be less than forty-eight (48) 



22 0822 8323 Central College Road Pool Fence Variance VAR-88-2022  3 of 7 

inches in height, maintained in good condition by the property owner, and affixed with an 

operable gate and lock. 

2. The city’s pool and fence code does not prescribe any particular style or type of fence 

other than saying such design and construction is to effectively prevent a child from 

crawling or otherwise passing through or under such fence or barrier.  

3. This lot is approximately 6.5 acres. The pool is located at the rear of the home. The front 

of the house is over 300 feet away from the northern, front property line. 

4. The northern portion of the property contains a stream. The applicant has stated the 

stream is 8 feet deep. This same stream also serves as a natural barrier between this 

property and the neighboring properties to the west as the steam continues onto those 

neighboring properties. The pool is 94’ feet from the western side yard property line. 

5. The property to the east is currently vacant and is mostly wooded. The pool is 

approximately 123’ 9” from the eastern side yard property line. 

6. The pool is approximately 493 feet from the rear yard property line. 

7. The applicant proposes to use an ASTM automatic pool safety cover. This may be similar 

to a pool cover the BZA approved in-lieu of a fence at 6958 Lambton Park, 10 New 

Albany Farms and 14 New Albany Farms. Pool covers are recognized by building code 

as an appropriate method to secure a pool. However, the city of New Albany has not 

adopted a zoning code that allows the use of covers in-lieu of a fence. The city’s private 

swimming pool ordinance regulates the construction of private pools within the city and 

requires a 4-foot fence affixed with an operable gate and lock.  

8. The property owner does not have plans to install any landscaping around the pool or any 

additional landscaping on the property. The applicant states they believe there are 

sufficient safety measures in place with the proposed ASTM automatic safety pool cover, 

the fact that the lot is 6.5 acres, there is only one entrance to the property from the front 

bridge over the stream, and with the natural barriers from neighboring properties (trees 

and 8-foot-deep stream). The applicant provided directional pictures as part of their 

application materials and they were included in the board’s packet. 

9. It does not appear the essential character of the neighborhood would be substantially 

altered or adjoining properties would suffer a “substantial detriment”. The pool is 

screened from the public right-of-way to the north by the house. The 8-foot-deep stream 

serves as a natural barrier between this property and the neighboring properties to the 

west. The southernmost portion of the rear yard is made of mostly tree masses. The 

majority of the eastern neighboring property is mostly wooded, but it is worth noting that 

the neighboring lot to the east is buildable and could potentially be developed in the 

future.  

 

V. HISTORY 

There have been several similar applications heard by either the Board of Zoning Appeals or the 

Planning Commission since 2007.   

▪ The BZA denied a variance to allow a pool cover for a residence on 15.6 acres in 

Illmington in 2007. The BZA cited safety and liability concerns as reasons for denying 

the variance request.  

▪ The BZA denied a variance to allow a pool cover in 2010 for a home on a 0.5-acre parcel 

in Fenway. The BZA cited safety and liability concerns as reasons for denying the 

variance request.   

▪ The BZA approved a variance to allow a pool cover in-lieu of a fence on May 28, 2014 

for 14 New Albany Farms Road. The BZA stated the size of the property (19.9 acres), 

proximity to other parcels and limited access due to private streets creates special 

conditions and circumstances which are peculiar to the land that results in a general 

isolation from neighbors. The parcel at 14 New Albany Farms is one of the largest in the 

gated Farms subdivision resulting in the pool being located a much greater distance from 

the parcel lines and roads. For this reason, the BZA approved the variance while stating 

some homes may be too close to each other for only a pool cover alone.  

▪ The BZA approved a variance to allow a pool cover in-lieu of a fence on September 22, 

2014 for 6 New Albany Farms Road. The BZA stated this lot having heavy woods on 



22 0822 8323 Central College Road Pool Fence Variance VAR-88-2022  4 of 7 

three sides of the property results in a general isolation from neighbors and being within 

the Farms community which is gated and has private streets creates special conditions 

and circumstances which are peculiar to the land. 

▪ The PC approved a variance to allow a pool cover in-lieu of a fence that meets code 

requirements on April 18, 2016 for 6958 Lambton Park Road. Members voting in favor 

of the variance noted that with conditions of approval the variance preserves the spirit 

and intent of the zoning ordinance, appears to have limited access due to the private golf 

course, substantial screening, horse fence, the property’s size and lack of neighbors create 

special circumstances, and having an annually certified pool cover. Members voting 

against the variance noted this is because there is not a condition requiring code 

compliant fencing along Johnstown Road and lack of evidence that pool covers have the 

same safety record as fences, and this is substantial because it affects the health and 

safety in the community. The conditions of approval are: 

o An automatic safety pool cover is installed that is ASTM compliant as and if 

amended. 

o The pool area is fully enclosed by a house, fence, or wall.  

o The existing 54” and 44” horse fence counts towards the enclosure of the pool. 

o The new fence, installed along the east side of the property adjacent to the 

neighboring lot that permits single-family residential, must meet the new 

proposed pool code requirements that the Planning Commission recommended 

approval of on April 18th.  

o The pool cover is certified annually by the homeowner.  

▪ The PC approved a variance to allow landscaping and pool netting in –lieu of a fence that 

meets code requirements on October 17, 2016 for 10 and 11 Highgrove. Members voting 

in favor of the variances noted that with conditions of approval the variance preserves the 

spirit and intent of the zoning ordinance, appears to have limited access due to the private 

golf course, substantial screening including a hedgerow to be installed around all sides of 

the pool, horse fence, the property owners stated the intent is to use the pool net when the 

pool is not in use with adult supervision, and having an annually certified pool net. 

Members voting against the variance noted this is because the property would have a 

reasonable return without the variance, believes variance is substantial, essential 

character of neighborhood would not change, property owners were aware of the 

restrictions, original permit showed code complaint fence and was not installed per 

approved plan. Finally, the applicant did not prove pool netting is as safe as a fence.  The 

conditions of approval are: 

o Landscaping approved by ARC and staff to include original and tonight's 

submissions. 

o Commitment to install boxwoods or gates at all openings. 

o Pool netting or hard cover ASTM compliant installed at all times when not in use 

and not attended by a responsible adult. 

o Applicant maintains landscaping and new plantings. 

o The pool netting is certified annually by the homeowners for function. 

o Hard cover installed by 11/1/16 and not removed until in compliance. 

o The applicant provides a copy of the easement to permit homeowner to maintain 

the fence in the event the NACO does not. 

▪ The PC approved a variance to allow a pool cover for a residence in-lieu of a fence that 

meets code requirements on May 18, 2020 for 7010 Lambton Park. The applicant 

proposed to install a 44-inch-high horse fence along the eastern property line which, in 

addition to a creek and being a heavily wooded area, provided an appropriate barrier to 

access that matched similar factors for other approved pool fence variances. The presence 

of a pool cover is also an important factor to ensure safety.  In addition, the applicant 

proposed to install a continuous, uninterrupted 3-4-foot-tall evergreen landscape hedge 

along the golf course property line where landscaping does not already exist. Staff 

believed that this additional landscaping served as an appropriate barrier to prevent 

uncontrolled, access to the pool. With these additional landscaping barriers, the variance 

preserved the spirit and intent of the zoning ordinance. The conditions of approval are: 



22 0822 8323 Central College Road Pool Fence Variance VAR-88-2022  5 of 7 

o Applicant maintains landscaping and new plantings. 

o The pool cover is certified annually by the homeowner. 

 

 

VI. EVALUATION 

Through several pool barrier variance applications; city staff, the Board of Zoning Appeals, and 

the Planning Commission have had to weigh the importance of many factors in coming to 

decisions on the applications. Some of the factors stated on the record are proximity of the 

property to other residences, public accessibility to the property, and the effectiveness of a pool 

cover in providing safety. 

 

The variances within the New Albany Farms subdivision were approved because the BZA stated 

the gated community with private streets, the large size of the properties, and proximity to other 

parcels create special conditions and circumstances which are peculiar to the land that results in a 

general isolation from neighbors. Both applications included the installation of a powered 

automatic safety cover. 

 

The application at 6958 Lambton Park shared some, but not all, of the property characteristics 

with the previously approved variances. Due to the property’s location along public streets, the 

Planning Commission paid special attention to characteristics of the property that have the effect 

of limiting public access. Additional information related to the technical standards and 

operational concerns of pool covers was also presented. The variance was approved by a 3-1 vote 

with several conditions of approval. Some of the factors that were discussed with the motion 

included: 

▪ The property appears to have limited access due to the private golf course and lack of a 

rear neighbor,  

▪ Substantial mounding, landscaping, horse fence and the property’s size impede public 

access, and  

▪ The applicant proposed an ASTM compliant pool cover which the homeowner agreed to 

certify annually. 

 

The same request for the homes at 10 and 11 Highgrove were approved and contain the same 

circumstances as listed above. Some other factors that were considered with the motion to 

approve the variance included: 

▪ The property appears to have limited access due to the private golf course and lack of a 

rear neighbor,  

▪ A hedgerow was installed around all sides of the pool to impede access, horse fence and 

the property being located on a cul-de-sac impede public access, and  

▪ The applicant proposed an ASTM compliant pool net which the homeowners agreed to 

certify annually and install when the pool is not in use. 

 

The application at 7010 Lambton Park was approved because the Planning Commission believed 

the pool cover was important to ensure safety, but also that the additional landscaping was an 

equally important factor that served as an appropriate barrier to prevent uncontrolled, access to 

the pool where an existing horse fence is located. Some other factors that were considered with 

the motion to approve the variance included: 

▪ A creek running along a side property line was determined to be an insufficient barrier 

and the owner is required to install a continuous code compliant fence. 

▪ Along the other side property line where a heavily wooded, undeveloped lot is located the 

owner is required to install a continuous code compliant fence due to its proximity to the 

pool. 

▪ The property appears to have limited access due to the private golf course and lack of a 

rear neighbor. The owner is required to install a continuous, uninterrupted 3-4-foot-tall 

evergreen landscape hedge along the golf course property line where landscaping does 

not already exist. 

 



22 0822 8323 Central College Road Pool Fence Variance VAR-88-2022  6 of 7 

VII. RECOMMENDATION 

The purpose of a variance hearing is to evaluate specific factors related to an applicant’s request. 

Although the property is comparable to recently approved applications, staff cannot support the 

request as submitted. The distance from the pool to the property lines, along with the natural 

barriers including existing trees to the south and the stream to the west, are certainly 

considerations. However, it doesn’t contain all the elements that have been required of recently 

approved variances.  

While the applicant is proposing to install a safety pool cover and points out existing natural 

barriers, the natural barriers are located on neighboring lots. The wooded lot immediately to the 

east is a buildable lot that could be built on in the future. Should that lot be developed in the 

future, the trees on that neighboring property could potentially be removed and an unimpeded 

access to the site would be created. As for the lot to the west, the stream is an existing natural 

barrier but it is located on the neighboring property and not on the property in question. The only 

portion of the stream on this property is located in the front yard to the north. 

Historically, the Board of Zoning Appeal and Planning Commission have only approved these 

types of variance requests when additional plantings and/or barriers are in place on the subject 

parcel. In reviewing the history of other requests, it is clear the other properties with an approved 

variance have had some existing natural features or improvements that were supplemented with 

additional barriers. Where none of these items existed, a code-compliant fence was required to be 

installed. With the exception of the property line to the south, the property lines on this site do not 

contain mounding or landscaping to prevent access. In addition, the area immediately surrounding 

the pool does not contain the boxwood hedges that were proposed and included as part of the 

approval for the Highgrove variances. Horse fencing to limit access from neighboring lots also 

does not exist, similar to other approved variances at the other properties mentioned above. 

The example variance request that was approved at 6958 Lambton was also 6.5 acres in size and 

shares some similarities with the lot in question. The neighboring property to the east was 

undeveloped and wooded at that time. However, staff and the Planning Commission recognized 

the lot permitted single-family and knew it could be developed in the future, which required the 

applicant to installed a code compliant fence along the eastern property line. Along the other side 

property line, the lot consisted of mounding and backed up to both the golf course and horse 

fence. Along the property line next to Johnstown Road, the property included a brick wall and 

horse fence.  

The city staff recommends additional improvements be provided to create an uninterrupted 

barrier to prevent uncontrolled access. If additional measures, such as:  

(1) a continuous landscape hedge, and  

(2) mounding or a non-code compliant fence (e.g. horse fence used in other approved 

variances)  

were included in the request along all sides of the pool, the application would be more closely 

aligned with other similar approved applications.  

  

VIII. ACTION 

Should the Board of Zoning Appeals find that the application has sufficient basis for 

approval, the following motion would be appropriate:  

 

Move to approve variance application VAR-88-2022 based on the findings in the staff report with 

the following condition(s) of approval:  

 

1. Additional measures, such as:  

(a) continuous landscape hedge, and  



22 0822 8323 Central College Road Pool Fence Variance VAR-88-2022  7 of 7 

(b) mound or non-code compliant fence (e.g. horse fence used in other approved 

variances)  

are included along all sides of the pool to create an uninterrupted barrier to prevent 

uncontrolled access. 

1. The pool cover is required and must be certified annually by the homeowner.  

 

 

Approximate Site Location: 

 

 
 

 



BZA 0822 22 New Albany Farms VAR-89-2022  1 of 3 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
Board of Zoning Appeals Staff Report 

August 22, 2022 Meeting 
 
 

22 NEW ALBANY FARMS 
PERGOLA MATERIAL VARIANCE 

 
 
LOCATION:  22 New Albany Farms (PID: 222-000986). 
APPLICANT:   Kevin Reiner Design, Donovan Richard 
REQUEST:   (A) Variance to C.O. 1165.04 B(1) to allow metal to be used as a 

material for two pergolas where city code only permits, brick, stone, 
composite siding, screen, or any combination thereof to be used.  

ZONING:   R-1 
STRATEGIC PLAN:  Residential  
APPLICATION: VAR-89-2022 
 
Review based on: Application materials received on July 28, 2022 
Staff report prepared by Sierra Cratic-Smith, Planner 
 
I. REQUEST AND BACKGROUND  
 
The applicant requests the following variance:  
 
(A) Variance to C.O. 1165.04 B(1) to allow metal to be used as a material for two pergolas where 
city code only permits, brick, stone, composite siding, screen, or any combination thereof to be 
used.  
 
II. SITE DESCRIPTION & USE  
The property is 7.31 acres in size and contains a single-family home. The lot is located in 
Franklin County in the New Albany Farms subdivision. There are several recreational 
amenities on the lot including a pool, patio, and tennis court. The surrounding properties are 
located within the same subdivision and contain residential uses.    
 
III. ASSESMENT  
The application complies with application submittal requirements in C.O. 1113.03, and is 
considered complete. In accordance with C.O. 1113.05(b), all property owners within 200 feet of 
the subject property in question have been notified of the request via mail. 
 
Criteria 
The standard for granting of an area variance is set forth in the case of Duncan v. Village of 
Middlefield, 23 Ohio St.3d 83 (1986). The Board must examine the following factors when 
deciding whether to grant a landowner an area variance: 
 
All of the factors should be considered and no single factor is dispositive.  The key to whether an 
area variance should be granted to a property owner under the “practical difficulties” standard is 
whether the area zoning requirement, as applied to the property owner in question, is reasonable 
and practical. 



BZA 0822 22 New Albany Farms VAR-89-2022  2 of 3 
 

1. Whether the property will yield a reasonable return or whether there can be a beneficial 
use of the property without the variance. 

2. Whether the variance is substantial. 
3. Whether the essential character of the neighborhood would be substantially altered or 

adjoining properties suffer a “substantial detriment.” 
4. Whether the variance would adversely affect the delivery of government services. 
5. Whether the property owner purchased the property with knowledge of the zoning 

restriction. 
6. Whether the problem can be solved by some manner other than the granting of a 

variance. 
7. Whether the variance preserves the “spirit and intent” of the zoning requirement and 

whether “substantial justice” would be done by granting the variance. 
 
Plus, the following criteria as established in the zoning code (Section 1113.06):  
 

8. That special conditions and circumstances exist which are peculiar to the land or 
structure involved and which are not applicable to other lands or structures in the same 
zoning district. 

9. That a literal interpretation of the provisions of the Zoning Ordinance would deprive the 
applicant of rights commonly enjoyed by other properties in the same zoning district 
under the terms of the Zoning Ordinance. 

10. That the special conditions and circumstances do not result from the action of the 
applicant.  

11. That granting the variance requested will not confer on the applicant any special 
privilege that is denied by the Zoning Ordinance to other lands or structures in the same 
zoning district. 

12. That granting the variance will not adversely affect the health and safety of persons 
residing or working in the vicinity of the proposed development, be materially 
detrimental to the public welfare, or injurious to private property or public improvements 
in the vicinity. 

IV.  EVALUATION  
(A) Variance to C.O. 1165.04 B(1) to allow metal to be used as a material for two pergolas 
where city code only permits, brick, stone, composite siding, screen, or any combination 
thereof to be used.  
The following should be considered in the commission’s decision: 

1. The applicant proposes to construct two metal pergolas made of galvanized steel on top of 
an existing patio within the rear yard of the property. The city code requires all 
recreational amenities’ materials be brick, stone, composite siding, and screen. Therefore, 
a variance is required to allow metal to be used as a primary material in this case.  

2. The property has special conditions and circumstances considering it is a 7.31-acre 
property that is located in the gated New Albany Farms subdivision. The subdivision 
consists of lots on large lots on private streets resulting in limited access to the homes.  

3. The variance request does not appear to be substantial. The property contains a large, 
single family home as well as several recreational amenities including a pool, patio and 
tennis court. The pergolas will be located at the rear of the property which is screened on 
three sides of the home.  

4. The pergolas will be screened with foliage such as wisteria which impedes any visual of 
the metal. Wisteria is a heavy, long vine with foliage that will cover the pergola pillars so 
although the pergolas are a metal finish material, visually it will appear like a landscaping 
feature. In addition, metal is preferred to hold the wisteria, which is considered a very 
dense and bulky planting, resulting in a heavier weight of the flora. 

5. The variance will not adversely affect the delivery of government services, the health and 
safety of persons residing or working in the vicinity of the proposed development, be 
materially detrimental to the public welfare, or injurious to private property or public 



BZA 0822 22 New Albany Farms VAR-89-2022  3 of 3 
 

improvements in the vicinity.  
 
 
IV. RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends approval of the requested variance should the find that the application has 
sufficient basis for approval. This project is located at the rear of the property is located within a 
gated community with private streets and roadways. In addition, the pergolas will feature a more 
natural landscape appearance when flora is applied. The final design intent is to create a 
naturalized landscaping feature in the backyard where the wisteria covers the majority of the 
metal pergolas.  
 
V. ACTION 
Should the Board of Zoning Appeals find that the application has sufficient basis for approval, 
finding the following motion is appropriate. 
 
Move to approve application VAR-89-2022 based on the findings in the staff report 
(conditions of approval may be added) 
 
Approximate Site Location: 

 
Source: NearMap 













an 
EXISllNG ..,. 
UNDERGROU . POWER (!l, 

0 

l'.; 
,_....,_..., ... ,.,,, 

-

Pool: 702sf 

"'Ji Ii J. ;; l ;t¼ -

•. 'V. T ,1,l, /,'.-;,• 
�If, } Ci t 

Pool Patio: 268 sf 
Other lmpery: 2938 sf 

Imperv Coverage: 
3908/284,185 = 1.38% 

� 
.. 
_____ .., 

1• ,ILL: i, _ 

' r  · .:632�
?IIN�N(i; OF' fOOT� 

lS R£Ci,Uti1£ N.00> 

I • 

·NEW FENONG BY OTHERS, 48" TALL 
·ALL GATES TO BE SIMILAR IN 
CONSTRIJCnON MATERIAL AND 
DIMENSIONS AS FENCING PANELS 
·ALL GATES TO SWING AWAY FROM 
POOL AR.EA AND BE SELF-CLOSING, 
SELF-LATCHING 
-GATE LATCHES TO BE MAGNA-LATCH, 
� SJtPI.All TYPE, INSTALLED WITH 
KNOia-fdiBSTHAN 54" FROM GRADE 
·ALL META.LUC FENONG WITHIN S' OF 
WATER UNE TO BE BONDED WITH 

lt-,,,---t- 123'9"'-----,1� 

t 

WF't . ...,.S, 

-i;• ,"'- • .,.. 

,,..,.,, .

6 5:26 ACRES 

ZONING 
APPROVED 
p. i-\ \ c.k.o1l..

� 5e-c. �rt"Nt- � t \'
c.ond,-non 

�""Ce. mu�\- be..
·\C\.�� \\ed ct� �ccn c:tS
+-he- F

\ h�� WQ."te(

Fence shown on plan was proposed 
at the time of building permit.



Fence shown on plan was proposed 
at the time of building permit application. 



 

North 

 



 

West 

 



 

East 



 

South  





















































22 New Albany Farms Rd. Proposed Pergola Location

03/17/2021

Kris
Highlight



Kris
Highlight


	22 0822 BZA Agenda
	22 0725 DRAFT BZA minutes
	22 0822 Central College Road Pool Fence Variance VAR-88-2022
	BZA 0822 22 New Albany Farms VAR-89-2022
	IV.  EVALUATION

	22 0801 8323 Central College Road Pool Fence Variance
	22 0822 8323 Central College Road Pool Fence VAR-88-2022
	Application
	Scanned Document

	Applicant Exhibit Pictures 

	22 0805 22 New Albany Farms Road VAR-89-2022
	Full Submittal Combined
	22 0822 22 New Albany Farms Road 22 VAR-89-2022
	Plot and Submittal

	22 0822 22 New Albany Farms Road 22 VAR-89-2022
	22 New Albany Farms Rd. Proposed Pergola Location.pdf
	22 New Albany Farms Rd. Proposed Pergola Location






